
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

AGENDA 

DATE:  Monday, February 5, 2018 
TIME:  4:30 p.m. 
LOCATION: Council Chambers, Enderby City Hall 

 
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
2. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
 Regular Meeting Minutes of January 15, 2018     pg 3-6 
 
3. PUBLIC AND STATUTORY HEARINGS 
 
4. PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS 
 
 Kamloops Okanagan Dairymen’s Association – Lorne Hunter   pg 7-8 

Re: Invitation for Tour and Discussion on Economic Impact of Agriculture on  
Local Economy 
 
Open Air Market – Gabriele Wesle       pg 9 
Re: Report on previous year and plans for 2018 market 

 
5. DEVELOPMENT MATTERS 
 
6. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES AND/OR UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

Minister of Environment and Climate Change Strategy – Correspondence dated pg 10-11 
January 25, 2018 
Re: Invasive Mussels 

 
7. BYLAWS – Adoption 
 

Council Procedure Bylaw No. 1645, 2017 – Memo from Deputy Corporate  pg 12-16 
Officer and Planner 

 
8. REPORTS 
 
 Mayor and Council 
 

2017 4th Quarter RCMP Policing Report      pg 17-32 
 
2017 4th Quarter Victims Assistance Program Report    pg 33-35 

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
  

Regular Meeting Agenda Cover February 5 2018 1

Bylaws%20-%20Council%20Procedure%20Bylaw.pdf
RCMP%20Victims%20Assistance%20Program%20Report%20October%20to%20December%202017.pdf
RCMP%20Policing%20Report%204th%20Quarter%202017.pdf
Delegation%20-%20Open%20Air%20Market.pdf
Regular%20Minutes%20January%2015%202018.pdf
Delegation%20-%20Kamloops%20Okanagan%20Dairymens%20Association.pdf
Ministry%20of%20Environment%20Correspondence%20on%20Invasive%20Mussels.pdf


Page 2 of 2 
 

 a. Township of Spallumcheen – Correspondence dated January 16, 2018 pg 36 
  Re: Support for Ride-Sharing Regulation 
 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 
11. CLOSED MEETING RESOLUTION 
 
 Closed to the public, pursuant to Section 90 (1) (a) and (k) of the Community Charter 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Regular Meeting Agenda Cover February 5 2018 2

Township%20of%20Spallumcheen%20Correspondence%20Regarding%20Support%20for%20Ride-Sharing.pdf


 City of Enderby – Regular Meeting January 15, 2018 

 Page 1 of 4 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF ENDERBY 
 

Minutes of a Regular Meeting of Council held on Monday, January 15, 2018 at 4:30 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall 
 
Present: Mayor Greg McCune 
  Councillor Tundra Baird 
  Councillor Brad Case 
  Councillor Roxanne Davyduke 
  Councillor Raquel Knust 
  Councillor Brian Schreiner 
  Councillor Shawn Shishido 
 
  Chief Administrative Officer – Tate Bengtson 
  Planner and Assistant Corporate Officer – Kurt Inglis 
  Recording Secretary – Bettyann Kennedy 
  The Press and Public 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Schreiner, seconded by Councillor Baird that the agenda be approved as 
circulated. 
           Carried 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Regular Meeting Minutes of December 18, 2017 
 
Moved by Councillor Knust, seconded by Councillor Shishido that the minutes of the regular 
meeting of December 18, 2018 be adopted as circulated. 
           Carried 
 
PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS 
 
Enderby and District Arts Council – Neil Fidler, Treasurer 
Re: 2018 Funding Request 
 

• EDAC continues to have a good working relationship with Council. 
• The annual Arts Festival costs continue to increase. 
• Music by the River concerts are extremely popular. 
• Painting of “chairs” for auction will be this year’s fundraising project. 
• The Arts Festival has a positive impact in bringing people to town. 
• It would be nice to have a cultural plan in place.  It was suggested that Tannis Nelson of 

RDNO be contacted about putting together a workshop. 
• Council requested that a fresh set of financials be provided which shows comparison to 

2016 figures and corrects some numbers that appeared erroneous. 
 
Moved by Councillor Case, seconded by Councillor Schreiner that the Enderby and District Arts 
Council request for funding be referred to the Finance Department for 2018 budget 
deliberations. 

Regular Minutes January 15 2018 3



 City of Enderby – Regular Meeting January 15, 2018 

 Page 2 of 4 
 

           Carried 
 
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES AND/OR UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Notice on Title – 709 Russell Avenue – Memo from Chief Administrative Officer dated January 
2, 2018 
 
The Mayor asked if there were any persons to speak to this item.  There were no speakers. 
 
Moved by Case, seconded by Baird that Council confirms the recommendations of the Building 
Inspector with respect to Notice on Title File No. 17-0513-END-NT; 
 
AND THAT Council direct the Corporate Officer to file a notice in the land title office stating that 
a resolution has been made under Section 57 of the Community Charter pertaining to the 
property legally described as Lot 14, Blk 7, DL 150, K(formerly O)DYD, Plan KAP211A and 
located at 709 Russell Avenue; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Council authorize the Corporate Officer to make available for public 
inspection further information about the notice on title pertaining to the property legally 
described as Lot 14, Blk 7, DL 150, K(formerly O)DYD, Plan KAP211A and located at 709 
Russell Avenue at City Hall. 
           Carried 
 
Rural Economic Development Service Memorandum of Understanding and Service 
Establishment Bylaw – Memo from Chief Administrative Officer dated January 8, 2018 
 
Moved by Schreiner, seconded by Davyduke that  Council participate in the Regional District of 
North Okanagan’s Rural Economic Development Service for the proposed three-year term, 
subject to the Service receiving 60% grant funding for the first two years and further subject to 
the confirmed participation of all jurisdictions; 
 
AND THAT, should the service not receive the support of all jurisdictions or the anticipated 
grant, Council re-evaluates its support for the service once the commitments are known, should 
the Regional District of North Okanagan still intend to proceed. 
           Carried 
 
REPORTS 
 
Councillor Schreiner 
 

• Was pleased to speak to the provincial Standing Committee on Ride-Sharing to present 
the unique challenges that small communities face due to lack of transportation options. 

• Annual Business Awards are fast approaching.  Nominations continue to come in. 
 
Mayor McCune 
 

• Reminder to attend the Chamber of Commerce Awards evening. 
• Splatsin election.  A letter of congratulations will be sent to successful candidates.  A 

C2C meeting will also be arranged. 
• Kudos to the public works crew in dealing with recent water breaks. 

Regular Minutes January 15 2018 4



 City of Enderby – Regular Meeting January 15, 2018 

 Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Building Permit Detail Report – December 2017 
 
Moved by Councillor Case, seconded by Councillor Knust that the report be received and filed. 
           Carried 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Notice of Regional Transit Service Review – Correspondence from Regional District of North 
Okanagan dated December 15, 2017 
 
Moved by Councillor Baird, seconded by Councillor Knust that Councillor Schreiner be 
appointed as representative to the Regional Transit Service Review Committee, 
           Carried 
 
Digital Billboard Sponsorship Renewal for 2018 – memo from Planner and Deputy Corporate 
Officer dated January 3, 2018 
 
Moved by Councillor Baird, seconded by Councillor Shishido that Council renew the annual 
digital billboard sponsorships for the year 2018; 
 
AND THAT Council increases the annual digital billboard sponsorship for the Enderby and 
District Museum Society from $2,100 to $4,900; 
 
AND THAT Council increases the annual digital billboard sponsorship for the Enderby and 
District Lions Club from $5,000 to $8,400. 
           Carried 
 
PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 
Yvonne Meyer asked the following:  

• Which level of government approves ride-sharing?  It is the Province that has the 
jurisdiction on passenger transportation. 

• Is Tuey Park the only facility with an off-leash dog area?  Tuey Park has a designated 
off-leash area, however dogs are permitted off-leash anywhere provided they are under 
the care and control of a responsible person, unless the area is signed otherwise. 

 
CLOSED MEETING RESOLUTION 
 
Moved by Councillor Davyduke, seconded by Councillor Shishido that, pursuant to Section 92 of 
the Community Charter, the regular meeting convene In-Camera to deal with matters deemed 
closed to the public in accordance with Section 90 (1) (k) of the Community Charter. 
           Carried 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The regular meeting reconvened at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Moved by Councillor Knust, seconded by Councillor Case that the regular meeting adjourn at 
5:30 p.m. 
           Carried 

Regular Minutes January 15 2018 5



 City of Enderby – Regular Meeting January 15, 2018 

 Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
MAYOR      CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
 
 
 
 

 

Regular Minutes January 15 2018 6



Delegation - Kamloops Okanagan Dairymens Association 7



Delegation - Kamloops Okanagan Dairymens Association 8



Delegation - Open Air Market 9



Ministry of Environment Correspondence on Invasive Mussels 10



Ministry of Environment Correspondence on Invasive Mussels 11



Bylaws - Council Procedure Bylaw 12



Bylaws - Council Procedure Bylaw 13



Bylaws - Council Procedure Bylaw 14



Bylaws - Council Procedure Bylaw 15



Bylaws - Council Procedure Bylaw 16



1 
 

Quarterly Policing Report  
 

                4th Quarter – October to December 2017 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Vernon North Okanagan 

Detachment 
 
 
 
     Committed to preserve the peace, uphold the law and provide quality service in partnership with our communities 

 

 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 17



2 
 

Superintendent Jim McNamara 
Officer in Charge 
Vernon North Okanagan Detachment 
3402 - 30th Street 
Vernon, BC   V1T 5E5   Date: January 15, 2018 
         
 
Re:  Vernon North Okanagan Detachment Policing Activity Report – 4th Quarter 2017 
 
All crime statistics for specific areas are featured at the end of this report. Statistics reflect monthly totals 
for October to December 2017 and comparisons of the previous year, 2016. 
 
The fourth quarter of 2017 was very busy in the Vernon North Okanagan as police officers worked hard 
to achieve a 22.5% decrease in Criminal Code offences and an amazing 30.54% decrease in Property 
Crime. Our officers are dedicated to our road safety initiatives, reporting a 4.55% increase in Road 
Safety check-stops conducted throughout the area.  
 
As communication is a vital aspect of our strategic plan, we are pleased to announce the arrival of our 
Media Relations Officer, Cst. Kelly Brett, who assumed the position in November. Cst. Brett was raised in 
the Vernon area, has 10 years of policing experience with the RCMP and has already proved a great 
addition.  
  

During this quarter, our police officers and employees participated in many fundraising 
activities, including the hugely successful United Way Breakfast campaign which raised 
$12,765 for the community.  As well, the Vernon Detachment collected $1200 from our 
employees as a Christmas gift for a special group of senior citizens.  Despite our police 
officers ability to ‘duck and dive’, in December the students of Seaton Secondary School 
defeated our police officers for the second year in a dodge ball match which raised 
donations for the local food bank.      
 
Most important, our police officers ensured a safe Christmas holiday for everyone with 
the successful apprehension of the notorious Grinch at the Village Green Mall.   

 
This report reflects a representative sampling of our policing activities for the 4th quarter of 2017. 
 
GENERAL INVESTIGATION SECTION (GIS) 
 
Serious Crimes Unit: 
 
The following report is a synopsis of some of the most recent investigations the Vernon Serious Crimes 
Unit (SCU) have conducted.  This report does not reflect all investigations officers are working on and 
does not include information which could impact ongoing police investigations or those which are of 
interest to, or under investigation by, other agencies.  SCU investigators continue to work on numerous 
historical major cases which were initiated outside of this reporting period. 
 

• In October, Vernon SCU provided assistance to General Duty officers in two separate 
investigations.  The SCU Sex Crimes investigator conducted a challenging child interview 
regarding an assault (File 2017-22837).  As well, Vernon SCU assisted with a sudden death 
investigation by following up on numerous investigative avenues.  It was determined there were 
no criminal offences committed (File 2017-24946).   
 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 18



3 
 

• In December, Vernon SCU Stepwise investigator assisted General Duty with a child interview 
(File 2017-27468).   As well, Vernon SCU commenced an investigation of a reported historical 
sexual assault.  Neither the alleged suspect nor the victim currently reside in the area.  The 
investigation continues (File 2017-28433).      

 
Domestic Violence Unit (DVU): 
 
During this reporting period, the Domestic Violence Unit received one Integrated Case Assessment 
Team (ICAT) referral and three previous closed ICAT referrals were re-opened for monitoring.  The DVU 
investigator attended a joint meeting with the Kelowna DVU investigator, as well as social workers from 
the Ministry of Children and Family Development (MCFD) to discuss more efficient approaches for police 
to report to MCFD.  In October, the DVU investigator participated in a five day workshop hosted by the 
Canadian Association of Threat Assessment Professionals.  In November, she attended a half-day 
session with the Violence Against Women in Relationships (VAWIR) committee to review the team’s 
strategic priorities.   
 
TARGETED POLICING: 
 
Targeted Policing provided assistance to a number of General Duty, Serious Crimes and Provincial GIS 
investigations.  In an effort to continue working closely with partner agencies and stakeholders, the 
Targeted Policing Unit met regularly with numerous partner agencies including: 

 
• Interagency meetings which are held monthly between RCMP, Parole, Adult and Youth 

Probation, and Ministry of Children and Families to discuss the status, activities, monitoring and 
enforcement of persons deemed a high risk to reoffend.  Our police officers also attend a similar 
meeting hosted in Salmon Arm as offenders in Enderby area fall under supervision of Salmon 
Arm Justice system;   
 

• Outreach meetings which are held weekly between RCMP, Probation, Ministry of Housing and 
Social Development, Interior Health, Vernon Jubilee Hospital (VJH), ACSS Team, Mental Health 
and Addictions, and Mental Health Forensic Services to discuss the status and risk factors related 
to persons in the community who suffer from mental illness, and are currently in the Justice 
System, or have a likelihood to be in the Justice System in the future; 
 

• Mentally Disordered Offenders meetings which are held quarterly between RCMP, Crown 
Counsel, Forensic Psychiatric Services, Probation, VJH and Interior Health to discuss the status 
and risk factors related to high risk offenders with a mental disorder.  
 

Task Force (TF): 
 

• In December, Task Force police officers investigated a dial-a-dope drug trafficking operation 
which resulted in the arrest of the accused.  The subsequent search of a vehicle located a 
quantity of cocaine, methamphetamine, heroin and fentanyl packaged for street level sale (File 
2017-28891). 
 

Crime Reduction Unit (Downtown Enforcement Unit & Prolific Offenders): 
 

• Prolific Offenders:  There are 23 prolific offenders identified for monitoring in our area.  Of those, 
there are currently 11 in custody and 12 not in custody.  

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 19



4 
 

• The Prolific Offender Unit reopened a break and enter investigation.  Through DNA evidence, a 
prolific offender was arrested and is currently in custody (File 2016-21536). 
 

• The Crime Reduction Unit assumed conduct of the investigation of a series of armed robberies in 
Vernon which resulted in the arrest of a male who remains in custody (File 2017-21452). 
 

• The Downtown Enforcement Unit interacted with many individuals at the street level and 
executed warrants of arrest, as well as submitted charges for breach of court conditions which 
included breach of curfew. 

 
Provincial Tactical Enforcement Priority (PTEP): 
 
Targeted Policing continues to participate in the policing priority of identifying, profiling, selecting and 
targeting individuals and/or groups involved in criminal activity and, because of their association to 
gangs/organized crime, pose a safety risk to the community. With prior enforcement action and 
relocation of certain targets, there were five (down from nine) such persons/groups identified from the 
Vernon North Okanagan area. 
 

• Targeted Policing conducted a lengthy investigation of a drug trafficking group, believed to be 
operated by a PTEP Target, which resulted in the arrest of two persons associated to the group 
and the seizure of cocaine, methamphetamine and a heroin/fentanyl mix packaged for street level 
sale (File 2017-25425).  As well, a third person associated to the group was arrested and search 
warrants were executed at residences in the Okanagan, resulting in the seizure of bulk quantities 
of cocaine, methamphetamine, and a heroin/fentanyl mix packaged for street level sale from a 
residence in Lake Country.  Drug trafficking paraphernalia and a quantity of cash was seized from 
a residence in Kelowna (File 2017-22448). 

 
NORTH OKANAGAN RURAL GENERAL INVESTIGATION SECTION (GIS): 
 
The following report is a synopsis of some of the most recent investigations that the Provincial Rural 
General Investigation Section (GIS) have received and investigated, however does not reflect all 
investigations that officers are working on.     
 

• Rural GIS continue to investigate the uttering of threats against a female escort (File 2017-
20142). 
 

• On November 23, Rural GIS assisted Rural General Duty with the investigation of the sexual 
exploitation of a young female, resulting in the execution of a search warrant on a residence in 
Armstrong.  The male resident was arrested and released on bail pending his next court 
appearance (File 2017-27401).  
 

• On December 12, Rural GIS assisted Rural General Duty with the interview of the victim of an 
assault with a weapon and break and enter in Lumby (File 2017-28800). 

 
 
 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 20



5 
 

 
NORTH OKANAGAN RURAL GENERAL DUTY (GD): 

 
• On October 6, police conducted a road check on Pleasant Valley Road in Armstrong when an 

approaching vehicle was recorded driving at 104 km/hr in the posted 50 km/hr zone.  The vehicle 
accelerated past the road check; however, police were able to obtain the license plate number 
and a description of the driver.  Both were later located by police and the driver was issued 
multiple violation tickets, the vehicle was impounded and the driver was released pending a court 
appearance (File 2017-23821).   
 

• On October 8, police responded to a report of a break and enter to a business in Enderby where 
numerous items were stolen, including a small case containing E-cigarettes. No suspects were 
identified (File 2017-23997). 
 

• On October 11, police attended Highway 97A in Enderby to a roll-over of a commercial vehicle 
loaded with apples.  The driver was charged with speed related offences under the Motor Vehicle 
Act and the vehicle towed (File 2017-24137).   
 

• On October 13, a police officer’s attention was drawn to a vehicle spinning tires on the roadway. 
The subsequent check of the vehicle determined the driver was impaired by alcohol and was 
issued a 90 day driving prohibition and a 30 day vehicle impoundment (File 2017-24269).   
 

• On October 13, police attended a single vehicle roll-over on Highway 97A in Mara. The 
investigation led to the driver providing a breath sample into an Approved Screening Device.  The 
driver was issued a 3 day driving prohibition and the vehicle was impounded (File 2017-24334).  
 

• On October 15, police responded to a domestic assault in Enderby where the suspect had 
departed on foot.  Our police dog section attended and tracked the suspect to a nearby 
residence.  The suspect male was arrested for uttering threats and assault (File 2017-24498). 
 

• On October 18, police received numerous reports of postal boxes having been pried open and 
the mail stolen, in the Armstrong and Enderby areas.  No suspects have been identified (Files 
2017-24717, 2017-24706, 2017-24697, & 2017-24726).  
 

• On November 1, police were dispatched to a single motor vehicle incident on Westside Road 
where the female driver was impaired by alcohol. A blood demand was made to the driver and 
samples obtained. The incident is under investigation (File 2017-25866).  
 

• On November 10, police responded to a robbery at a hotel in Enderby where the victim was 
struck on the head with a baton and cash and cigarettes were stolen. A suspect was identified 
and the incident is under investigation (File 2017-26587).  
 

• On November 22, police responded to a robbery at a residence in Enderby where one of the 
suspects was alleged to have had a firearm. Police located one suspect shortly after the incident 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 21



6 
 

and a second suspect was arrested the following day, however no firearm was located.  Crown 
Counsel declined to proceed with charges (File 2017-27359).  
 

• On November 22, the BC Integrated Child Exploitation Unit advised of an email address in 
Armstrong which had downloaded child pornography.  A male suspect was arrested for 
possession and distribution of child pornography and the investigation continues (File 2017-
27401).  
 

• On November 29, a residence in Spallumcheen was broken into while the owners were on 
holidays.  Numerous items were stolen, including video surveillance equipment.  No suspects 
were identified and the investigation remains open (File 2017-27897).  

 
• On December 18, a business in Armstrong was broken into and several cartons of cigarettes 

were stolen.  The investigation determined the suspect(s) hid in the store at closing, attempted to 
breach the store safe, and caused considerable damage. No suspects were identified (File 2017-
29262).  
 

• On December 19, a female arrived at the Shuswap General hospital with non-life threatening stab 
wounds to her stomach and neck. The investigation determined the suspect was at the victim’s 
residence in Enderby where the incident occurred.  The police dog section tracked the suspect 
who was arrested without incident in a building on the property (File 2017-29328). 
 

• On December 31, two brothers, aged 5 and 7, were reported missing from an outdoor family 
gathering on Westside Road.  Police officers from the Rural offices, Police Dog Section as well as 
members of Vernon Search & Rescue and the OKIB Fire Department responded to the scene.  
After an extensive search the boys were located, suffering from hypothermia and frostbite, but are 
expected to make a full recovery.  It was determined the boys became lost after they wandered 
off in search of marshmallow roasting sticks (File 2017-30254). 

 
TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT: 
 

North Okanagan Rural: 
 
• Road Check Stops - 12 
• Impaired Drivers taken off road by way of suspension or charge - 16  
• Distracted Driver charge - 4  

 
Area Violation Ticket Warning 
Armstrong 18 35 
Enderby 46 26 
Falkland 38 19 
Lumby 126 11 
Spallumcheen 25 28 
Westside 13 13 

 
 

 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 22



7 
 

Vernon/Coldstream: 
 
• Road Check Stops - 11 
• Impaired Drivers taken off road by way of suspension or charge – 74  
• Distracted Driver charge – 8  

 
Area Violation Ticket Warning 
Vernon 410 213 
Coldstream 76 32 
Vernon Rural 5 0 

 
     

 
 
***This graph depicts the total traffic enforcement (Tickets & Warnings) results for Vernon, Coldstream & Vernon Rural areas*** 
 
FORENSIC IDENTIFICATION SECTION (FIS): 
 
Our FIS operated with two regular members in rotation and has one reserve member dedicated to the 
Vernon/North Okanagan Detachment policing jurisdiction.  During this quarter, a total of 12 individuals 
were identified on 9 files through fingerprints or other types of physical evidence.  FIS members assisted 
Kamloops with a robbery investigation and Revelstoke with a possession of stolen property over $5000. 
 
FIS Calls for Service: 
  

Offence Vernon Rural 
Break & Enter 9 2 
Theft Vehicle 7 6 
Theft 4 1 
Mischief 1 0 
Homicide 0 1 
Drugs 3 0 
Assault 1 1 
Arson 1 1 
Armed Robbery 2 1 
Miscellaneous 6 0 

 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 23



8 
 

Note:  “Vernon” FIS Calls for Service encompass Vernon, Coldstream and Vernon Rural.  The “Rural” calls for service include 
Armstrong, Enderby, Falkland, Lumby & Westside.  
 
POLICE DOG SERVICES (PDS): 
 
The Vernon/North Okanagan PDS had two operational members during this quarter.  Our third police 
dog suffered a medical issue and is unable to continue with duties.           
 
RESERVISTS: 
 
The Vernon North Okanagan reservists conduct targeted traffic enforcement in our communities.  The 
reservists assist General Duty officers as required and conduct crime scene security, in-house training 
and liaise with Search & Rescue when necessary. 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER (SRO): 
 
The Vernon School Resource Officer conducted presentations on anti-bullying, digital citizenship, 
respectful schools and Law 12 to the secondary schools.  At the elementary level, Cst. Cocks provided 
lectures on police officer equipment and duties as well as general safety tips.  There were six lock-down 
drills conducted at various schools within the School District.  Cst. Cocks participated in three suspension 
hearings, graduation exit interviews at Kalamalka Secondary and attended to the Youth Hub to interact 
with high risk youth. 
 
COMMUNITY POLICING: 
 
Vernon RCMP Volunteers currently have 58 persons active with the Program.  In response to a spike in 
theft from vehicles, volunteers conducted twelve (12) daytime patrols of parking lots in “Lock out Auto 
Crime” operations.  “Speed Watch” volunteers participated in seven (7) operations, slowing down 1267 
vehicles.  In support of our Road Safety initiatives, volunteers conducted 18 hours of “Cell Watch” and 
issued warning letters to 39 motorists for distracted driving offences. 
 
The Community Policing Office moved to its new location on November 23rd and was renamed the 
Community Safety Office.  Volunteers and staff are pleased with the higher profile location as they have 
seen an increase in contacts with the public.  This quarter, the 17 volunteers have donated 660.5 hours 
and forwarded 20 complaints to the RCMP for follow up.  As well, they handled 238 phone calls and had 
575 people attend the office.    
 
 

Detachment Patrols V.T. Warnings 
Vernon 8 26 8 
Coldstream 13 55 33 
Armstrong 0 0 0 
Enderby 1 5 0 
Falkland 4 20 3 
Lumby 1 5 0 
Spallumcheen 2 4 0 
Westside Road 1 4 0 
Total 21 119 44 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 24



9 
 

AUXILIARY CONSTABLES: 
 
The Vernon North Okanagan Detachment Auxiliary Constable Program remains the same and will await 
further direction from National Headquarters with regards to the implementation of a training standard 
and uniform requirement for a Tier 3 Program.  
 
HUMAN RESOURCES: 
 

• Established Levels: Vernon North Okanagan Detachment is currently at 100 Regular Members: 
56 City of Vernon; 33 Provincial; 7 Coldstream; 3 Spallumcheen and 1 Splats’in First Nation. 
 

• Funded Levels:  As of the December 31st, 2017, the Vernon North Okanagan Detachment billed 
49.53 City of Vernon; 30.53 Provincial, 5.43 Coldstream; 2.67 Spallumcheen and 1 Splats’in First 
Nations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 25



10 
 

4th Quarter Statistics – City of Vernon 
ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 

2016 
Oct 

2017 
Nov 

2016 
Nov 

2017 
Dec 

2016 
Dec 

2017 
Total Files 1304 1241 1345 1278 1135 1238 
Robbery 2 6 1 6 - 3 
Assault (Includes DV) 32 18 26 28 30 44 
Domestic Violence 9 3 5 7 9 17 
Sex Offence 5 6 4 2 1 3 
B&E Residence 16 2 20 6 22 6 
B&E Commercial 15 7 17 5 10 12 
Theft of Vehicle 16 9 26 6 6 8 
Theft From Vehicle 90 46 73 32 37 34 
Theft Over $5000 - 1 2 3 1 1 
Theft Under $5000 96 75 69 92 66 51 
Drug Offence 23 26 44 26 16 21 
Liquor Offences 26 36 29 40 30 35 
Impaired Driving 4 12 6 21 2 10 
24 Hour Driving Suspension 3 10 1 9 6 10 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 37 36 57 46 62 61 
  

4th Quarter Statistics – Vernon Rural 
ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 

2016 
Oct 

2017 
Nov 

2016 
Nov 

2017 
Dec 

2016 
Dec 

2017 
Total Files 183 130 171 154 141 148 
Robbery - - - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) 2 1 - 2 4 5 
Domestic Violence 1 1 - 2 3 4 
Sex Offence 1 - - - - - 
B&E Residence 2 1 6 - - 1 
B&E Commercial 3 2 3 2 - - 
Theft of Vehicle 2 - 1 2 4 1 
Theft From Vehicle 20 5 19 5 4 2 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 4 1 5 3 6 3 
Drug Offence 1 1 1 1 2 1 
Liquor Offences - - 1 - 1 5 
Impaired Driving 3 2 1 1 5 2 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - 1 - - 2 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 11 13 5 19 31 23 
 
“The quarter crime statistics are a sampling of the 15 most commonly reported Crime Codes which have the greatest impact on 
communities and provide police with valuable insight into crime activities and trends.  Currently, there are over 700 Crime/Survey 
Codes utilized by Canadian policing agencies in the reporting of crime to the Canadian Centre for Justice in Ottawa.” 
  

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 26



11 
 

4th Quarter Statistics – District of Coldstream 
ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 

2016 
Oct 

2017 
Nov 

2016 
Nov 

2017 
Dec 

2016 
Dec 

2017 
Total Files 136 116 113 90 105 73 
Robbery - - - - 1 1 
Assault (Includes DV) 5 1 1 1 2 2 
Domestic Violence 3 - - - 1 1 
Sex Offence - - 1 - - - 
B&E Residence 1 - 2 2 5 1 
B&E Commercial - - 1 - 3 - 
Theft of Vehicle 2 - - - - 1 
Theft From Vehicle 34 4 11 2 4 4 
Theft Over $5000 - - - 1 - - 
Theft Under $5000 1 3 4 - 4 2 
Drug Offence 2 - 1 2 - 1 
Liquor Offences 2 2 1 - - 1 
Impaired Driving 1 - 1 - - 1 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - - - - - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 4 7 6 2 11 10 
 

  4th Quarter Statistics – City of Armstrong 
 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 103 100 83 72 72 67 
Robbery - - - - - - 
Assault (includes DV) 3 5 1 2 2 3 
Domestic Violence 1 2 - - 1 1 
Sex Offence 1 - - 2 - - 
B&E Residence - 1 - 1 - - 
B&E Commercial - - - - - 1 
Theft of Vehicle - 2 - 1 1 - 
Theft From Vehicle 13 9 15 - 4 5 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 3 2 2 1 2 1 
Drug Offence - - - - - - 
Liquor Offences 4 2 1 2 5 - 
Impaired Driving 1 1 - 1 - - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - - 1 1 2 
Motor Vehicle Accidents - 1 3 - 6 2 
 
“The quarter crime statistics are a sampling of the 15 most commonly reported Crime Codes which have the greatest impact on 
communities and provide police with valuable insight into crime activities and trends.  Currently, there are over 700 Crime/Survey 
Codes utilized by Canadian policing agencies in the reporting of crime to the Canadian Centre for Justice in Ottawa.” 
 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 27



12 
 

4th Quarter Statistics – Spallumcheen 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 98 93 92 83 65 83 
Robbery - - - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) 2 2 2 2 - 2 
Domestic Violence - - 1 2 - 2 
Sex Offence - - - - - - 
B&E Residence 2 1 2 3 - - 
B&E Commercial 1 1 - - - - 
Theft of Vehicle 2 - 1 - - - 
Theft From Vehicle 4 - 5 2 2 3 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 - - 4 1 - 2 
Drug Offence 2 1 - - 1 1 
Liquor Offences 3 1 - - - - 
Impaired Driving 1 - - - - - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - - - 1 - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 7 6 7 11 13 13 
  

4th Quarter Statistics – City of Enderby 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 95 121 115 99 82 74 
Robbery - - - 2 - - 
Assault (Includes DV) - 3 1 1 3 2 
Domestic Violence - 2 1 - 1 - 
Sex Offence - - 1 - 1 - 
B&E Residence - - - 1 2 - 
B&E Commercial 1 2 1 1 2 - 
Theft of Vehicle 2 3 2 3 6 - 
Theft From Vehicle 2 1 1 2 - 2 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 3 7 8 4 2 8 
Drug Offence 2 1 1 1 - - 
Liquor Offences 3 6 - 4 1 2 
Impaired Driving - 1 - - - - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - - 1 - - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 1 1 - 2 3 1 
 
“The quarter crime statistics are a sampling of the 15 most commonly reported Crime Codes which have the greatest impact on 
communities and provide police with valuable insight into crime activities and trends.  Currently, there are over 700 Crime/Survey 
Codes utilized by Canadian policing agencies in the reporting of crime to the Canadian Centre for Justice in Ottawa.” 
 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 28



13 
 

4th Quarter Statistics – Enderby Rural 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 52 76 54 56 36 71 
Robbery - - - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) 1 1 - 2 1 2 
Domestic Violence - - - 1 - 2 
Sex Offence - - - - - - 
B&E Residence - 1 2 1 - 1 
B&E Commercial - - 1 - - - 
Theft of Vehicle 2 - 2 - - 1 
Theft From Vehicle - 1 1 - - 1 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 1 2 1 2 - - 
Drug Offence - - - - - - 
Liquor Offences - - - - - - 
Impaired Driving - - - - - - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - 1 - - - - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 7 8 2 4 5 17 
  

4th Quarter Statistics – Village of Falkland 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 18 17 11 12 10 9 
Robbery - - - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) 1 - 1 1 2 - 
Domestic Violence - - - - - - 
Sex Offence - - - - - - 
B&E Residence - - - - - - 
B&E Commercial - - - - - - 
Theft of Vehicle - - 1 - - - 
Theft From Vehicle - - 1 - - - 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 1 - - - 1 - 
Drug Offence - - - - - - 
Liquor Offences - - - - - 1 
Impaired Driving - - - - - - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - - - - - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 1 1 1 1 - 1 
 
“The quarter crime statistics are a sampling of the 15 most commonly reported Crime Codes which have the greatest impact on 
communities and provide police with valuable insight into crime activities and trends.  Currently, there are over 700 Crime/Survey 
Codes utilized by Canadian policing agencies in the reporting of crime to the Canadian Centre for Justice in Ottawa.” 
 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 29



14 
 

4th Quarter Statistics – Falkland Rural 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 35 62 49 45 36 30 
Robbery - - - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) 1 1 3 1 2 1 
Domestic Violence 1 1 2 1 1 1 
Sex Offence - - - - - 1 
B&E Residence - - - - - - 
B&E Commercial - - - - - - 
Theft of Vehicle 1 - - - - 1 
Theft From Vehicle 1 1 - 1 - - 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 - - 2 1 2 - 
Drug Offence - - 1 - - - 
Liquor Offences 1 - - 1 - - 
Impaired Driving - 1 - - - - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension 1 - - - - - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 3 6 3 6 6 7 
 

 4th Quarter Statistics – Village of Lumby 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 44 40 52 33 35 29 
Robbery - - - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) - 3 2 1 1 - 
Domestic Violence - 2 - 1 1 - 
Sex Offence - - - 1 - - 
B&E Residence - - 1 - - - 
B&E Commercial 1 - - - - - 
Theft of Vehicle - - 1 - - - 
Theft From Vehicle 2 2 - - 1 - 
Theft Over $5000 - - 1 - - - 
Theft Under $5000 1 - 1 1 - - 
Drug Offence 1 - 1 - - - 
Liquor Offences 3 1 2 3 2 - 
Impaired Driving - - - - - - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - 1 1 - - 2 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 2 1 2 2 1 3 
 
“The quarter crime statistics are a sampling of the 15 most commonly reported Crime Codes which have the greatest impact on 
communities and provide police with valuable insight into crime activities and trends.  Currently, there are over 700 Crime/Survey 
Codes utilized by Canadian policing agencies in the reporting of crime to the Canadian Centre for Justice in Ottawa.” 
 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 30



15 
 

4th Quarter Statistics – Lumby Rural 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 64 55 52 31 47 34 
Robbery - 1 - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) - 1 1 - 1 2 
Domestic Violence - - - - 1 - 
Sex Offence - - - - - - 
B&E Residence - - - - - 1 
B&E Commercial - - - - - - 
Theft of Vehicle - 1 - - - - 
Theft From Vehicle 3 - - - - - 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 1 2 2 - - 1 
Drug Offence - - - - 1 - 
Liquor Offences 1 - - - - - 
Impaired Driving 1 1 - 2 1 - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - - - - - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 7 4 5 4 6 5 
  

4th Quarter Statistics – OKIB 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 26 45 24 26 26 42 
Robbery - - - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) - 2 1 2 1 1 
Domestic Violence - 2 1 - 1 - 
Sex Offence 1 - - - - - 
B&E Residence - - 1 - - - 
B&E Commercial - - - - - - 
Theft of Vehicle - 1 - - - - 
Theft From Vehicle 1 1 3 1 2 - 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 1 2 1 - - 1 
Drug Offence - - 1 - - - 
Liquor Offences - 1 - - - - 
Impaired Driving - - - 2 - - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - - - - - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 3 3 3 4 5 3 
 
“The quarter crime statistics are a sampling of the 15 most commonly reported Crime Codes which have the greatest impact on 
communities and provide police with valuable insight into crime activities and trends.  Currently, there are over 700 Crime/Survey 
Codes utilized by Canadian policing agencies in the reporting of crime to the Canadian Centre for Justice in Ottawa.” 
  

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 31



16 
 

4th Quarter Statistics – Splatsin 

ACTIVITY  TYPE   Oct 
2016 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2016 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2016 

Dec 
2017 

Total Files 19 19 19 20 21 21 
Robbery - 1 - - - - 
Assault (Includes DV) - 1 - - 1 2 
Domestic Violence - 1 - - - 2 
Sex Offence - - - - - - 
B&E Residence 1 - 1 - - - 
B&E Commercial - - - - - - 
Theft of Vehicle 2 - - - 1 - 
Theft From Vehicle - - - - - - 
Theft Over $5000 - - - - - - 
Theft Under $5000 - - - - 1 - 
Drug Offence - - - - - - 
Liquor Offences - - 1 - - - 
Impaired Driving 1 - 1 - 1 - 
24 Hour Driving Suspension - - - - - - 
Motor Vehicle Accidents 2 5 3 1 4 3 
 
“The quarter crime statistics are a sampling of the 15 most commonly reported Crime Codes which have the greatest impact on 
communities and provide police with valuable insight into crime activities and trends.  Currently, there are over 700 Crime/Survey 
Codes utilized by Canadian policing agencies in the reporting of crime to the Canadian Centre for Justice in Ottawa.” 
 

RCMP Policing Report 4th Quarter 2017 32



 
 

NORTH OKANAGAN RCMP VICTIMS ASSISTANCE 
4th QUARTER ACTIVITY REPORT 
October 1 to December 31 2017 

 
 
 
CASELOAD: 

 Number of new files:  161 

 Client type:   Female:   121  Male:  40 

 Adult:  115       Child:   10    Youth: 10 Senior:  17       Unknown:   9 

 Number of new clients from family violence:  25   

 Number of hours out on call, after hours (staff and volunteers):  45 hours 

 Number of volunteer in-office service hours:   458  hours 

 Number of volunteer stand-by on-call hours:   2981 hours 

 Number of staff stand by on call hours:   3816 hours  

 Number of volunteers:  15     

 Number of staff:   Full time:  2 Part time:  1  Casual:  1 
 

 
HIGHEST NUMBER OF INCIDENT TYPES: 

 Sudden death 

 Domestic 

 Suicide 

 Sexual assault 

 Homicide 
 

AREA OF COVERAGE: 

 Vernon   113 

 Coldstream  0 

 Armstrong  5 

 Spallumcheen  3   

 OKIB   4 

 Enderby  15  

 Splatsin   3 

 Lumby/Cherryville 5    

 Cherryville  7 

 Falkland  5 

 Other Jurisdiction 6 
 
 

CLIENT CONTACT/SUPPORT: 

 Daily in office client support 

 Out of office client meetings 

 Court support, orientation, and court tours  

 Assistance with completion of Crime Victims Assistance Applications and Victim Impact Statements 

 After hour call-out 

RCMP Victims Assistance Program Report October to December 2017 33



 
 

NORTH OKANAGAN RCMP VICTIMS ASSISTANCE 
4th QUARTER ACTIVITY REPORT 
October 1 to December 31 2017 

 
 
 
 
VOLUNTEER/STAFF TRAINING/PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT: 

 Volunteer monthly training meetings 

 Ongoing daily training for each volunteer shift 

 Annual volunteer appreciation banquet 

 8 Volunteers attended one day training in Kamloops BC: From Arrest to Parole – Victim Notification 

 VAU Manager attended 5 day Canadian Association of Threat Assessment Professionals (CATAP) 
conference in La Malbaie Quebec 

 All Staff attended Violence Prevention Training put on by RDNO 

 Annual Victim Services Christmas Social 
 
 
COMMUNITY MEETINGS: 

 Integrated Case Assessment Team (ICAT) meetings   

 Violence Against Women in Relationships (VAWIR) committee meeting 

 Suicide Prevention committee meetings 

 Oak Centre Leadership  and Case Management meetings 

 Sexual Assault Services meeting (SAS) 
 
 
OPERATIONAL MEETINGS: 

 Detachment liaison meetings 

 RDNO employee/liaison/staff meetings 

 Program Manager and RDNO Administrator meetings 

 Health and Safety meetings 

 Police Victim Services of BC board meetings 

 Writer attended Police Victim Services of BC (PVSBC) in person Board meeting in Surrey BC 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
RDNO RCMP Victim Services is an integral part of policing services and a key resource in assisting some of our 
most traumatized citizens, whether the victim, family members, witnesses, and the community during an acute 
crisis, crime, or sudden death. Our program is a small but busy program that makes every reasonable effort to 
support those that may be affected by a crime or trauma so the police are able to focus on their duties during 
and after a crisis call for service. Our unit is able to provide ongoing support dependent on our client’s needs, 
whether it be crisis response, ongoing emotional support, referrals, or court support.  
 
Program statistics from 2014-current demonstrate an increasing trend in referrals to our program.  
 
2014, 467 new files  

RCMP Victims Assistance Program Report October to December 2017 34



 
 

NORTH OKANAGAN RCMP VICTIMS ASSISTANCE 
4th QUARTER ACTIVITY REPORT 
October 1 to December 31 2017 

 
2015, 516 new files  
2016, 719 new files  
2017, 629 new files  
 
Even though our referrals were less in 2017 than 2016, we have more and more ongoing clients with an 
increasing complexity of needs. 
These STATS do not include brief contact with people calling in or walk-ins requesting information or support 
services information. 
This is challenging for a program that has not expanded significantly in size, while also managing a volunteer 
program. 
 
 
 
 
Completed by:   Anita EILANDER 
  Program Manager 

RCMP Victims Assistance Program Report October to December 2017 35



Township of Spallumcheen Correspondence Regarding Support for Ride-Sharing 36


